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October 17, 2016  

To the Board of Trustees 
Riverton Street Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Riverton Street Charter School (the “School”) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2016 and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 
2016. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related 
to our audit. 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated February 17, 2016, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared 
by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does 
not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Riverton Street Charter School. Such 
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to 
provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such 
matters. 

Our audit of Riverton Street Charter School’s financial statements has also been conducted in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Under Government Auditing Standards, we are obligated to communicate certain 
matters that come to our attention related to our audit to those responsible for the governance 
of Riverton Street Charter School, including compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, grant agreements, certain instances of error or fraud, illegal acts 
applicable to government agencies, and significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. Toward this end, we issued a separate letter dated October 17, 2016 regarding 
our consideration of Riverton Street Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements. 
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To the Board of Trustees October 17, 2016 
Riverton Street Charter School 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our letter about planning matters dated June 1, 2016. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by Riverton Street Charter School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during 2016. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a 
different period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

There were no significant balances, amounts, or disclosures in the financial statements based on 
sensitive management estimates. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit.  

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as 
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. 

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
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To the Board of Trustees October 17, 2016 
Riverton Street Charter School 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management. 

The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements which 
were requested to be recorded. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, business conditions affecting the School, and business plans and strategies 
that may affect the risks of material misstatement with management each year prior to our 
retention as the School’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of 
our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition of our retention. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated October 17, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the board of trustees and management of 
Riverton Street Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
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To the Board of Trustees October 17, 2016 
Riverton Street Charter School 

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications and we 
would be willing to discuss any of these or other questions that you might have at your 
convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

Michael A. Lamfers, CPA 
Partner 

Michelle M. Goss, CPA 
Partner  
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Client: Riverton Street Charter School 
Y/E: June 30, 2016 

SUMMARY OF UNRECORDED POSSIBLE ADJUSTMENTS 

The pretax effect of misstatements and classification errors identified would be to increase (decrease) the 
reported amounts in the financial statement categories identified below: 

Net Income 

Current Long-term Current Long-term Statement 

Ref. # Description of Misstatement Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Equity Revenue Expenses Impact 

FACTUAL MISSTATEMENTS: 

A1 To adjust due from state - other sources. Revenue was 
orignally recorded as $225 per FTE and the actual 
amount received after year end was $215.125 per FTE $ (8,011) $ (8,011) $ (8,011) $ (8,011) 

JUDGMENTAL ADJUSTMENTS: 

B1 None 

PROJECTED ADJUSTMENTS: 

C1 None 
- $  - - $  - $  - - - $ -

Total $ (8,011) $  - $  (8,011) $  - $  - $  (8,011) $  (8,011) $ -

PASSED DISCLOSURES: 

D1 None 
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RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2016 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash 
Due from governmental revenue sources 

 Total current assets 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
 Capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL 

$ 

$ 

118,055 
368,317

486,372 

56,459 
(32,969) 

23,490 

509,862 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Deferred revenue 
 Contracted service fee payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS: 
Unrestricted and undesignated 

TOTAL 

$

$ 

21,323 
422,265 

443,588 

66,274 

509,862 

See notes to financial statements. 
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RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT: 
State aid 
 Other state sources 
Federal sources 
Private sources 

$ 11,464,483 
1,355,650 

768,537 
34,511

 Total revenues, gains and other support 13,623,181 

EXPENSES:
 Contracted service fee 
Depreciation 

13,630,368 
7,876 

Total expenses 13,638,244 

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (15,063) 

NET ASSETS: 
Beginning of year 81,337 

End of year $ 66,274 

See notes to financial statements. 
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RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2016 

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
State aid 
 Other state sources 
Federal sources 
 Private sources 
Payments for services rendered 

$ 11,282,271 
1,371,496 

749,405
35,247 

(13,445,472) 

Net cash used in operating activities (7,053) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH (7,053) 

CASH — Beginning of year 125,108 

CASH — End of year $ 118,055 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET 
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets 
Depreciation 
 Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Change in due from governmental revenue sources 
Change in deferred revenue 
Change in contracted service fee payable 

$ (15,063) 
7,876

(200,457) 
15,695 

184,896 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (7,053) 

See notes to financial statements. 
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RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Riverton Street Charter School (the “School”) is a public charter school as defined by 
Article 56 of the New York State Education Law which provides education based on rigorous 
teaching methods, parental involvement, student responsibility, and basic moral values. 
The School operates under a charter approved by the New York City Department of 
Education, which is responsible for oversight of the School’s operations. The charter expires 
June 30, 2019 and is subject to renewal. Management believes the charter will be renewed in 
the ordinary course of business. The School provides education, at no cost to the parent, to 
students in kindergarten through the eighth grade. Enrollment is open to all appropriately 
aged children without regard to gender, ethnic background, disability, and/or religious 
affiliation. The School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3). 

The School’s primary source of revenue is provided by the State of New York and consists 
of an amount per student multiplied by weighted average student counts. The state revenue is 
recognized ratably over the school year and was funded through payments from July 2015 
through May 2016 for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

The Board of Trustees of the School has entered into a management agreement (the 
“agreement”) with National Heritage Academies, Inc. (NHA) which requires NHA to 
provide administration, strategic planning and  all labor, materials, equipment, and 
supervision necessary for the provision of educational services to students. As part of the 
consideration received under the agreement, NHA also provides the facility in which the 
School operates. The agreement will continue until termination or expiration of the 
charter, unless at least 90 days written notice of intent to terminate or renegotiate is given 
by either the School or NHA. 

Under the terms of the agreement, NHA receives as remuneration for its services an amount 
equal to the total revenue received by the School from all revenue sources and NHA pays the 
Board of Trustees an amount equal to the lessor of two percent of state per pupil aid or 
$35,000. These funds are property of the School and may be used by the School at the 
discretion of the board. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting — The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Section 2851 of the Education Law of the State of New York which requires such statements 
to be prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America for not-for-profit organizations. 

- 6 -



 

      
     
        

               
        

   

       

    
  

     
    

    

      
        

   

      

    

      

                

  

        
      

     
      

      
       

             
 

     
     

 

    
      

       
         

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities  at the date of  the financial  statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash — Cash as of June 30, 2016 represents bank deposits which are covered by federal 
depository insurance. 

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue as of June 30, 2016 consists of funds received for 
services which have not yet been performed. 

Contracted Service Fee Payable — Contracted service fee payable represents a 
timing difference between funds received from governmental sources and amounts payable 
to NHA in accordance with the services agreement. 

Capital Assets – Capital assets, which include equipment, are reported at historical costs. 
Capital assets are defined by the School as assets with an individual cost of more than $2,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

Equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over useful lives of 3–10 years. 

The Financial Statements — The financial statements are presented as follows: 

Net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets  which  are not subject to  donor imposed 
or governmental stipulations. 

Revenues and contributions are reported as follows: 

Revenues, gains and other support are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets 
unless use of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed or governmental restrictions. 
Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Other assets or liabilities 
are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is 
restricted by explicit donor stipulation or governmental restriction. Expiration of temporary 
restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purposes has been fulfilled and/or the 
stipulated  time  period  has  elapsed) are  reported  as reclassifications between the 
applicable classes of net assets. 

Revenue is recorded when earned, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants 
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. 

Income Taxes — The School operates as a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School has 
received notification from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that they are considered 
exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the internal revenue code. 
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The School has evaluated its position regarding the accounting for uncertain income tax 
positions and does not believe that it has any material uncertain tax positions. The School 
recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if the positions are more likely than not of 
being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are recorded at the largest amount that is 
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full 
knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax position has 
met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances and 
other information available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment. 
Changes in the recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in 
judgment occurs. The School is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, 
there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Management believes it is no 
longer subject to income tax examinations prior to June 30, 2013. 

3. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The School  is exposed to  various  risks  of loss  related  to general liability. Commercial 
insurance policies to cover certain risks of loss have been obtained. There have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage during fiscal year 2016, and claims did not 
exceed coverage less retained risk deductible amounts in the past fiscal year. 

4. CONTINGENCIES 

The School has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of 
these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate 
expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant 
monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be 
immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the 
refund of grant monies. 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity of the school was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Disposals Balance 

Equipment $ 56,459 $ - $ - $ 56,459 

Total capital assets at historical cost 56,459 - - 56,459 
Less accumulated depreciation — 
equipment 25,093 7,876 - 32,969

 Total accumulated depreciation 25,093 7,876 - 32,969 

Total capital asset activity, net $ 31,366 $  (7,876) $ - $ 23,490 

- 8 -



 

  

       
        

    
 

  

   
   

 

       
  

     

 

    
  

 

 

 

6. OPERATING LEASE 

The School has entered into a sublease agreement with NHA for a facility to house the School. 
The lease term is from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015 and is in the process of renewal. 
Rental payments required by the lease for the periods through June 30, 2016 were 
$3,405,795. 

7. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The School provides a comprehensive education programs to enrolled students. Expenses 
incurred for these programs and other expenses are as follows: 

Program services: 
Regular education $ 8,861,894 
Special education 973,084 

Supporting services management and general 3,795,390 

Total contracted service fee 13,630,368 

Depreciation Expense 7,876 

Total Expenses $ 13,638,244 

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Events or transactions for the year ended June 30, 2016 have been evaluated through 
October 17, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. The financial 
statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date. 

* * * * *  
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HARTER SCHOOL

 EXPENSES 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education 

Other 
Education 

Program Services 

Total 
Fund 
raising 

Management 
and General Total 

Supporting Services 
2016 

Total 

istrative Staff Personn $ 532,165  $  $ $ 532,165  $  $ $ $ 532,165  
tional Personnel 2,643,844 661,055 3,304,899 3,304,899 

nstructional Personnel 31,064 31,064 31,064 

3,207,073 661,055 3,868,128 3,868,128 
es 734,289 146,714 881,003 881,003 

50,346 11,327 61,673 61,673 

20,599 20,599 20,599 

10,836 10,836 426,276 426,276 437,112 
nal / Consulting Services 7,897 146,682 154,579 992,722 992,722 1,147,301 
se 3,099,828 3,099,828 3,099,828 

307,734 307,734 47,045 47,045 354,779 
34,285 34,285 34,285 
190,530 190,530 190,530 
267,083 740 267,823 267,823 
128,765 128,765 128,765 
164,702 6,566 171,268 28,006 28,006 199,274 
3,509 3,509 162,513 162,513 166,022 
29,649 29,649 481,480 481,480 511,129 
522,168 522,168 522,168 
33,783 33,783 192,756 192,756 226,539 
48,818 48,818 75,550 75,550 124,368 
7,876 7,876 7,876 

1,389,042 1,389,042 1,389,042 

$ 8,869,770 $ 973,084 $ $ 9,842,854 $ $ 3,795,390 $ 3,795,390 $ 13,638,244 
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RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

State/Pass-
Federal through 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor’s 
Program or Cluster Title  Number Number Expenditures 

Child Nutrition Cluster 
U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Passed through New York State Education Department: 
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 $  116,700 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 286,501

     Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 403,201 

U.S. Department of Education: 
Passed through New York State Education Department: 

Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021154795 112,178 
0021164795 218,694

     Total Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies 330,872

    Title II, Improving Teacher Quality 

     Total Title II, Improving Teacher Quality 

84.367 0147154795 
0147164795 

3,999 
15,617

19,616

  Passed through New York City Department of Education:
    IDEA Cluster - IDEA, Part B 84.027 2016 14,848

     Total U.S. Department of Education 365,336 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE $ 768,537 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures - 17 -
of Federal Awards. 
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Tel: 616-774-7000 200 Ottawa Avenue NW, Suite 300 
Fax: 616-776-3680 Grand Rapids, MI 49503 

Tel: 269-382-0170 211 East Water Street, Suite 300 
Fax: 269-345-1666 Kalamazoo, MI 49007 
www.bdo.com 

Instructions for filing
RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 

Form 8868 - Application for Extension of Time to File
for the period ended June 30, 2016 

************************* 

Signature...
No signature necessary. 

Filing...
We have electronically filed your extension. 

Payment of tax...
No payment of tax is required. 

************************* 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of 
the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

XL454 1.000 BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

http:www.bdo.com
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Form 8868 
(Rev. January 2014) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Application for Extension of Time To File an

Exempt Organization Return
 

File a separate application for each return.I I 
I

Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form8868.
 

If you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part I and check this box
 m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m%
% If you are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part II (on page 2 of this form). 

Do not complete Part II unless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868. 

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 if you need a 3-month automatic extension of time to file (6 months for 
a corporation required to file Form 990-T), or an additional (not automatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronically file Form 
8868 to request an extension of time to file any of the forms listed in Part I or Part II with the exception of Form 8870, Information 
Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see 
instructions). For more details on the electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits. 

Part I Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed). 

A corporation required to file Form 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension - check this box and complete 

Part I only m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m I
All other corporations (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time 

to file income tax returns. Enter filer's identifying number, see instructions 

Enter the Return code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) 

Type or 
print 

File by the 
due date for 
filing your 
return. See 
instructions. 

Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. 

RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 

Employer identification number (EIN) or 

30-0615036 
Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. 

118-34 RIVERTON STREET 
Social security number (SSN) 

City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions. 

m m m m m m m m m m m m
JAMAICA, NY 11412 

0 1 

Application 

Is For 

Return 

Code 

Application 

Is For 

Return 

Code 

Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07 

Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08 

Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09 

Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10 

Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11 

Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12 

STEPHEN M. CONLEY 
The books are in the care of%	 I 
Telephone No.	 FAX No.I	 I
If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m I%

% If this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is 

for the whole group, check this box . If it is for part of the group, check this box and attach 

a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for. 
m m	 m m m m I m m	 m m m m m I ELE

C

O
N
IC

ALL
Y F

IL
ED

1	 I request an automatic 3-month (6 months for a corporation required to file Form 990-T) extension of time 

until 02/15 , 20 17 , to file the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension is 

for the organization's return for:

calendar year 20 or 

X tax year beginning 07/01 , 20 15 , and ending 06/30 , 20 16 . 
I
I 

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: Initial return Final return
 
Change in accounting period
 

3a	 If this application is for Form 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any 

nonrefundable credits. See instructions. $ 0. 
b If this application is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 

3a 

$ 0.3b 

c	 Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by using EFTPS
 
(Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions.
 $ 0.3c 

Caution. If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 

instructions. 

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2014) 

JSA 

5F8054 1.000 

10/14/2016 12:46:28 PM V 15-5.3F	 PAGE 1 

www.irs.gov/efile
www.irs.gov/form8868


 

Primary Account Number: 

2

Premium Business Money Market 
PNC Bank 

For the Period 09/01/2016 to 09/30/2016 

Page 1 of 

Number of enclosures: 0 

RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL For 24-hour banking sign on to 

RESERVE ACCOUNT PNC Bank Online Banking on pnc.com 

3850 BROADMOOR AVE SE STE 201 FREE Online Bill Pay 

GRAND RAPIDS MI 49512-3975 

For customer service call 1-800-669-1518 

Monday - Friday: 7 AM - 10 PM ET 

Saturday & Sunday: 8 AM - 5 PM ET 

Para servicio en espanol, 1-877-BUS-BNKG 

Moving? Please contact your local branch 

Write to: Customer Service 

PO Box 609 

Pittsburgh, PA 15230-9738 

Visit us at PNC.com/treasury 

TDD terminal: 1-800-531-1648 

For hearing impaired clients only 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNT FOR SOLE PROPRIETORS 

We may report information regarding your Account to credit bureaus. If the Account is jointly held, we may 
also report information to credit bureaus about any joint owner(s). Negative information, including closing 
of the Account with an overdrawn balance owed or other defaults on the Account, may be reflected in each 
joint owner's credit report. 

Riverton Street Charter School
Premium Business Money Market Summary Reserve Account 
Account number: 10-2907-6978 

Balance Summary 
Beginning 

balance 
Deposits and 

other additions 
Checks and other 

deductions 
Ending 

balance 

75,280.40 12.34 .00 75,292.74 

Average ledger 
balance 

Average collected 
balance 

75,280.81 75,280.81 

Interest Summary 
Annual Percentage 

Yield Earned (APYE) 

0.20 

Number of days in 
interest period 

30 

Average collected 
balance for APYE 

75,280.81 

Interest paid 
this period 

12.34 

Interest paid 
year-to-date 

112.64 

Deposits and Other Additions 
Description 

Other Additions 

Items 

1 

Amount 

12.34 

Checks and Other Deductions 
Description Items Amount 

Total 1 12.34 Total 0 .00 

Daily Balance 
Date 

09/01 

Ledger balance 

75,280.40 

Date 

09/30 

Ledger balance 

75,292.74 



Premium Business Money Market 
For 24-hour account information, sign-on to
 

pnc.com/mybusiness/
 

Premium Business Money Market Account Number: 10-2907-6978 - continued Page 2 of 

For the Period 09/01/2016 to 09/30/2016 

Riverton Street Charter School 

Primary Account Number: 
2

Activity Detail 
Deposits and Other Additions 

Other Additions 
Date Transaction Reference 
posted Amount description number 

09/30 12.34 Interest Payment I-GEN116093000008750 

Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender 



     

           

  
  

  

  

  

   
        

  

    
    

             
 

              
           

            

          
            

           
            

New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 


Board of Regents
�

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates
�

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 13,638,070 1,345,854 - - - 14,983,924 

Total Expenses 9,886,862 1,034,674 - - 4,062,388 14,983,924 

Net Income 3,751,208 311,180 - - (4,062,388) -

Actual Student Enrollment 785 99 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

NYC $13,877.00 12,377,425 - - - - 12,377,425 

School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

12,377,425 12,377,425 

Special Education Revenue - 1,303,105 - - - 1,303,105 

Grants 

Stimulus - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Other State Revenue 394,652 - - - - 394,652 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 12,772,077 1,303,105 14,075,182 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - 42,749 - - - 42,749 

Title I 358,136 - - - - 358,136 

Title Funding - Other 11,782 - - - - 11,782 

School Food Service (Free Lunch) 443,053 - - - - 443,053 

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Other Federal Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 812,971 42,749 855,720 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - - - -

Erate Reimbursement - - - - - -

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - - -

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals) 53,022 - - - - 53,022 

Text Book - - - - - -

Other Local Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 53,022 53,022 

TOTAL REVENUE 13,638,070 1,345,854 14,983,924 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management - - - - - - -

Instructional Management 1.00 162,325 - - - - 162,325 Principal 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 4.00 348,292 - - - - 348,292 Deans 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - - -

Operation / Business Manager - - - - - - -

Administrative Staff 3.63 139,910 - - - - 139,910 Registrar, Office Administrator, Student Recruitment Specialist 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 9 650,527 650,527 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 33.00 1,926,154 - - - - 1,926,154 Classroom Teachers 

Teachers - SPED 11.00 - 652,432 - - - 652,432 Resource Room Teachers 

Substitute Teachers - 54,932 - - - - 54,932 

Teaching Assistants - - - - - - -

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 13,638,070 1,345,854 - - - 14,983,924 

Total Expenses 9,886,862 1,034,674 - - 4,062,388 14,983,924 

Net Income 3,751,208 311,180 - - (4,062,388) -

Actual Student Enrollment 785 99 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Specialty Teachers 9.00 523,721 - - - - 523,721 Specials Teachers, Academic Specialists 

Aides 8.18 177,047 47,304 - - - 224,351 Paraprofessionals 

Therapists & Counselors 1.65 91,680 - - - - 91,680 Social Work 

Other 1.00 45,218 - - - - 45,218 Student Family Liason 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 64 2,818,752 699,736 3,518,488 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -

Librarian 1.50 73,760 - - - - 73,760 Library Technology Specialist, Library tech aide 

Custodian - - - - - - -

Security - - - - - - -

Other 2.06 47,697 - - - - 47,697 Recess Aides 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 4 121,457 121,457 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 76 3,590,736 699,736 4,290,472 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 320,862 62,693 - - - 383,555 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 546,891 110,705 - - - 657,596 Includes Tuition Reimbursement 

Retirement / Pension - - - - - -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 867,753 173,398 1,041,151 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 4,458,489 873,134 5,331,623 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 11,135 - - - 456,741 467,876 Audit Fees and Accounting Services 

Legal 11,800 - - - - 11,800 

Management Company Fee - - - - - -

Nurse Services - - - - - -

Food Service / School Lunch - - - - - -

Payroll Services - - - - - -

Special Ed Services - 155,970 - - 22,492 178,462 Contracted Services and Billed Services 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - 191,130 191,130 Intervention Services 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting - - - - 627,978 627,978 Human Resources, and General Support 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 22,935 155,970 1,298,341 1,477,246 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses 35,000 - - - - 35,000 Board Funds 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 107,071 - - - - 107,071 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 4,047 - - - 4,047 

Textbooks / Workbooks 40,913 - - - - 40,913 

Supplies & Materials other 20,500 - - - - 20,500 Office Supplies 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -

Telephone 9,407 - - - - 9,407 

Technology 57,864 - - - 612,863 670,727 Software and Technology Services 

Student Testing & Assessment 31,661 - - - 172,699 204,360 

Field Trips 5,125 - - - - 5,125 

Transportation (student) - - - - - -

Student Services - other - - - - - -

Office Expense 39,775 - - - 20,491 60,266 Printing, Copier Costs, Postage, Dues and Fees 

Staff Development 76,590 1,183 - - - 77,773 Training, Professional Development, Meetings and Meals 

Staff Recruitment 4,260 - - - 336,521 340,781 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 1,500 - - - 363,243 364,743 Advertising and Marketing, Business Development 

School Meals / Lunch 569,902 - - - - 569,902 Food Services Costs 

Travel (Staff) 6,943 340 - - - 7,283 

Fundraising - - - - - -
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Riverton Street Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 13,638,070 1,345,854 - - - 14,983,924 

Total Expenses 9,886,862 1,034,674 - - 4,062,388 14,983,924 

Net Income 3,751,208 311,180 - - (4,062,388) -

Actual Student Enrollment 785 99 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Other 12,305 - - - 1,212,734 1,225,039 Curriculum Development, School Quality, General Administrative Support. 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,018,816 5,570 2,718,551 3,742,937 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 41,529 - - - - 41,529 Liability, Property, and Board Insurance 

Janitorial 191,811 - - - - 191,811 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 3,682,016 - - - - 3,682,016 Includes Property Taxes 

Repairs & Maintenance 148,400 - - - 45,496 193,896 

Equipment / Furniture 139,625 - - - - 139,625 Rental of Equipment and Furniture 

Security 3,121 - - - - 3,121 

Utilities 180,120 - - - - 180,120 Gas, Electric, Sewer & Water, Waste & Trash 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 4,386,622 45,496 4,432,118 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - - -

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,886,862 1,034,674 4,062,388 14,983,924 

NET INCOME 3,751,208 311,180 - - (4,062,388) -

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

NYC 785 99 884 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -

School District 3 (Enter Name) -

School District 4 (Enter Name) -

School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 785 99 884 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 17,373 13,594 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 12,595 10,451 -

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Emma Dawson 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Trustee 2015-2016 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 
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None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

7/22/2016 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Teleph _______________ 

Business Addres _______________ 

E-mail Address: _______________ 

Home Telephone _______________ 

Home Address: _____________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Linda Green 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). Trustee 2011-2016 

Vice President < 1 Year 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/22/2016 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/ABusiness Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

N/ABusiness Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: ____________________ 

Home Telephone ____________________ 

Home Address: _________________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Angela Kiffin 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Secretary 2010-Present 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/22/2016 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/ABusiness Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

N/ABusiness Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: _ __________________ 

Home Telephone: __________________ 

Home Address: ________________ 
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________________________________________________________________  

         
 

          
  

           
      

         
        

 

           
      

        
        

      
         

         
      

         

   
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Deborah King 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Vice President 2010-2015 
Trustee 2015 - Present 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/22/2016 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/A 

Business Address: N/A 

Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: __________________ 

Home Telephone __________________ 

Home Address: ________________ 



  
  

 

________________________________________________________________  

      
   

________________________________________________________________  

         
 

          
  

           
      

         
        

 

           
      

        
        

      
         

         
      

         

   
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Rochelle Noel 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). Trustee < 1 year 

President 2010-2016 
2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 7/22/2016 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/A
Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

N/ABusiness Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address ___________________ 

Home Telepho ____________________ 

Home Address: _________________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Keisha Phillips-Kong 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). President < 1 Year (Current) 

Vice President 2015-2016 
Trustee 2012-2015 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

________ ________________________________________________________ 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

7/22/2016
 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/ABusiness Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

N/ABusiness Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address __________________ 

Home Telephon __________________ 

Home Address: ________________ 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Marilyn Towns-Jones 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Riverton Street Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Treasurer 2010-Present 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____NoX 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

X____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



     
     

       
       

          
       

         
       

    
       

       

  
  

     
    

   

   

    

 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

None None None None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/22/2016 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

N/ABusiness Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

N/ABusiness Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: __________________ 

Home Telephon ___________________ 

Home Address: ________________ 



v 

EFGHIJKJLMNJNOPQR
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstusturvw 

xMypPv 

STJUVHHRFGJLWOHXJYRZPRHJ[F\WHZOG]WF 

z{QNOpp ~}M�� x�N�O���P�� ��}}�OOpp ��O��y
|M}p �SS{pNN O�pP��M{S ������MO���N �p}�p{�

��t|� 

L��SM z{QNOppt�p �pN W{pp� }�p{ 

��yp�Mu �pS{pOM{Y �pN 7����� 

�{pMP�� 
~�Rp{O�Np�
M�St�{
�SS�O���M� 
���pPMO 
�S����
�RM{p�O� 
NOM�� 
}p}�p{�
pOST� 

|Q}�p{P�� 
zp{}N
�p{UpSPM�S
Lp�yO�P�� 
~MS�
�V�S�QSp
p�pSO���
SMOpPM�S 
Op{}
p�R�{MO���� 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 
Np{UpSqPu
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
uP4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q 
�M{S� 
urvv 
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurvs 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 
Np{UpSqP9
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q
9P4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
6Q�pPurvr
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurv: 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 

123425
 



5p��{M� z{QNOppt�p �pN 9 7��y }�p{ 

��S�p��p ��M�{t��M{a �pN |�p� SPx{pN�Sp�O 

7p�N�M ��Sp 
b x�����RNc ��M�{t��Sp �pN 

7��y x{pN�Sp�O 

�M{��Y�
w z�e�Nc z{pMNQ{p{ �pN 

6��pN 

Np{UpSqP9
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
9P4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
6Q�pPurvr
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurv: 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 
Np{UpSqP9
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
9P4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
6Q�pPurvr
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurv: 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 
Np{UpSqPu
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
uP4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{}N 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
|�Up}�p{ 
urvu 
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurvd 

|Q}�p{P�� 
Op{}N 
Np{UpSqP9
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
9P4Pz�{pp 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
6Q�pPurvr
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurv: 

|Q}�p{P��
 

623425
 



~}}M z{QNOppt�ps �pN 5MeN�� }�p{ 

d 

: 

vr 

vv 

vu 

v9 

va 

vb 

vw 

vs 

vd 

v: 

ur 

Op{}N 
Np{UpSqPv
Lp�yO�P�� 
pMS�POp{}q 
vP4Pze� 
YpM{POp{} 
5MOpP��
~�pSO���q
�pROp}�p{
urvb 
~�R�{MO��� 
��Pzp{}q
6Q�pPurvs 

^TJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JWFJaVFRJbcdJ^cSe 

s 

bTJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JaW]F]FfJGgRJLWOHXJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH
 

mTJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JnRoOHG]FfJGgRJLWOHXJXVH]FfJGgRJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH 

723425 

v 



r
 

eTJ_VZPRHJW\JgWG]FfJYRZPRH`J^cSehSidJO`J`RGJPIJGgRJPIhQOh`dJHR`WQVG]WFJWH 

Z]FVGR` 

v9 

iTJ_VZPRHJW\JLWOHXJYRRG]Ff`JUWFXVkGRXJ]FJGgRJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH 

vu 

iTJ_VZPRHJW\JLWOHXJYRRG]Ff`JjkgRXVQRXJ\WHJGgRJ^cSihSiJjkgWWQJlROH 

vr 

NgOFjJIWVT
 

523425
 



 

 

 

  

   

    

   

   

   

   

 

 

Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 24, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

Meeting held at:
 

Riverton Street Charter School, 11834 Riverton Street, St. Albans, NY 11412
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

PRESENT NOT PRESENT TERM EXPIRATION 

Rochelle Noel | President X June 30, 2016 

Keisha Phillips-Kong | Vice President X June 30, 2018 

Angela Kiffin | Secretary X June 30, 2016 

Marilyn Towns-Jones | Treasurer X June 30, 2016 

Deborah King | Trustee X June 30, 2016 

Linda Green | Trustee  X June 30, 2017 

NON-BOARD MEMBERS ATTENDING: 

1. Andrea Whitehurst – Principal 

2. Verone Kennedy – Director of School Quality 

3. Emma Dawson – Public 

1.	 CALL TO ORDER 

Keisha Phillips-Kong called the meeting to order at 7:14 p.m. 

2.	 ROLL CALL 

Roll call was held. 

3.	 APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

A motion was made by Linda Green and seconded by Deborah King to approve the agenda as 
amended. Keisha Phillips-Kong requested an update of plan B preparation for the opening of 
the school. The motion was approved unanimously. 

4.	 APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 15, 2015 BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

A motion was made by Deborah King and seconded by Linda Green to approve the June 15, 
2015 Board Meeting Minutes as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously.  

Page 1 of 4 



 

  

 

 

 

Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 24, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

5.	 MANAGEMENT REPORTS 

a.	 Principal Report 

Andrea Whitehurst presented the Principal Report.  

I. Eagle Awards 

The Eagle Awards that the school received were discussed. This year, the awards 
were for School of Excellence, Student Attendance, and Parent Satisfaction. 

II. School Performance Report Dashboard Suite 

The School Performance Report Dashboard Suite was presented. 

1.	 Proficiency & Growth were discussed. Keisha Phillips-Kong proposed using 
a scale of 0-100 in the future. 

2.	 The Parent Satisfaction Survey Results were discussed. 

b.	 Board Fund Report 

The Board Fund balance was reported at $24,343.30.  

6.	 DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a.	 Recent school staffing updates were discussed. The school has filled three integrated co-
teaching Special Education positions, one self-contained Special Education position, one 
third grade teaching position, and one art teaching position. 

b.	 Professional Development for teachers is scheduled to begin August 31, 2015. 

c.	 The delay on school construction was discussed. The construction work will not be 
completed by September 1, 2015. There are temporary plans set in place for housing 
students during the beginning of the school year. The art and music rooms will be used as 
classrooms, as well as the library. The new projected date of completion is scheduled for 
October. 

d.	 The Proposed 2015-2016 Board Funds Budget was discussed. 

e.	 The Auditor Planning Communication was discussed. 

f.	 The 2014-2015 Annual Report was discussed. 

7.	 ACTION ITEMS 

a.	 Approval of the Education Committee 

A recommendation was made by Linda Green to change the name of the Personnel 
Committee to Education Committee. A motion was made by Linda Green and seconded 
by Rochelle Noel to approve the Education Committee. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 

Page 2 of 4 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 24, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

Note: Prior to Approval of the Personnel Hires, the Board asked for clarification concerning 
some of the positions. The Board has requested prior notification of hires be required prior 
to Board meetings. Andrea Whitehurst explained the positions of the Summer School 
Tutor and 4th grade ICT.  

b.	 Approval of the Personnel Hires 

A motion was made by Linda Green and seconded by Deborah King to approve the 
Personnel Hires of: 

• Angella Dixon as a Kindergarten Teacher 
• Brian Kohn as a Self-Contained Special Education Teacher 
• Christina Napolitano as a 6th/7th grade Tutor 
• Corinne Frost as an 8th grade Math Tutor 
• Itzel Connell as a Paraprofessional 
• Jamie Lusky as a 4th grade Special Education Teacher 
• Kyriaki Dimitrakakis as a 2nd grade Special Education Teacher 
• Malaika Galera as a Paraprofessional Summer School Tutor 
• Onica Jackson as a 6th/7th Grade Tutor 

The motion was approved unanimously. 

8.	 NEW BUSINESS 

	 Andrea Whitehurst updated the Board on the construction expansion project. A tentative 
completion window of the beginning of October is expected. 

	 Andrea Whitehurst shared the beginning of school plans for classrooms and explained 
that she is confident that the school will open with little or no major interruptions. 

	 Andrea Whitehurst discussed the upcoming professional development sessions for the 
faculty. Deborah King and Angela Kiffin expressed interest in attending one of the 
sessions in order to speak with the school faculty and express the Board’s support as a 
new school year begins. 

Page 3 of 4 





  
  
    

   

 

  

  

    

      

       

      

     

      

     

   

   

 

        

 

  

 

           
      

     

             
      

 

         
     

Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Friday, September 11, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

Meeting held at:
 

Riverton Street Charter School, 11834 Riverton Street, St. Albans, NY 11412
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 

PRESENT NOT PRESENT TERM EXPIRATION 

Rochelle Noel | President X June 30, 2016 

Keisha Phillips-Kong | Vice President X June 30, 2018 

Angela Kiffin | Secretary X June 30, 2016 

Marilyn Towns-Jones | Treasurer X June 30, 2016 

Deborah King | Trustee X June 30, 2016 

Linda Green | Trustee X June 30, 2017 

NON-BOARD MEMBERS ATTENDING: 

1. Jim McCarthy – NHA 

1.	 CALL TO ORDER 

Rochelle Noel called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. 

2.	 ROLL CALL 

Roll call was held. 

3.	 APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

A motion was made by Keisha Phillips-Kong and duly seconded to approve the agenda as 
submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 

4.	 APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 24, 2015 BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

A motion was made by Keisha Phillips-Kong and duly seconded to approve the August 24, 2015 
Board Meeting Minutes as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 

5.	 EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to enter executive session in 
order to discuss a personnel matter. 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Friday, September 11, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

The motion was approved in a roll call vote.
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: Yes No 


Linda Green – Trustee X 

Angela Kiffin – Secretary X 

Rochelle Noel – President X 

Keisha Phillips-Kong – Vice President X 

Marilyn Towns-Jones – Treasurer X 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to re-enter open session.
 

The motion was approved in a roll call vote.
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: Yes No 

Linda Green – Trustee X 

Angela Kiffin – Secretary X 

Rochelle Noel – President X 

Keisha Phillips-Kong – Vice President X 

Marilyn Towns-Jones – Treasurer X 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Friday, September 11, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

6.	 PUBLIC COMMENT
 

None was given.
 

7.	 ADJOURNMENT
 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m.
 

NEXT MEETING: 

Monday, September 21, 2015 at 7 p.m. 

OFFICER OF THE BOARD 

SIGNATURE
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 Riverton Street Charter School
Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Page 1 of 5 

Meeting held at: 

Riverton Street Charter School, 11834 Riverton Street, St. Albans, NY 11412 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 

PRESENT NOT PRESENT TERM EXPIRATION 

Rochelle Noel | President X June 30, 2019 

Keisha Phillips-Kong | Vice President X June 30, 2018 

Angela Kiffin | Secretary X June 30, 2019 

Marilyn Towns-Jones | Treasurer X June 30, 2019 

Deborah King | Trustee X June 30, 2019 

Emma Dawson | Trustee X June 30, 2017 

Linda Green | Trustee X June 30, 2017 

NON-BOARD MEMBERS ATTENDING: 

1. Andrea Whitehurst – Principal

2. Juan Canizares – Teacher

3. Jim McCarthy – NHA

4. Tania Joseph-Pauline -- Parent

5. Nicole Barrett – Parent

6. Tryphina Hall – Parent

7. Corey Thompson – Parent

8. Juan Canizares – Teacher

9. Trina Mitchell – Parent

10. Helen Aitcheson – Parent

11. M. Hasell – Parent

1. CALL TO ORDER

Rochelle Noel called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was held. 
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Riverton Street Charter School
Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Page 2 of 5 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. 
The motion was approved unanimously.  

4. APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 16, 2015 BOARD MEETING MINUTES

A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to approve the November 16, 
2015 Board Meeting Minutes as corrected. The motion was approved unanimously.  

5. MANAGEMENT REPORTS

a. Principal Report

Andrea Whitehurst presented the Principal Report and responded to inquiries about parent 
participation in Coffee with the Principal events. 

I. Behavior Management System 

Andrea Whitehurst provided an overview of the revised Behavior Management 
System being implemented at the school with an emphasis on positive and 
immediate intervention strategies to correct behavior. 

II. School Performance Report Dashboard Suite

The School Performance Report Dashboard Suite was presented. 

1. Proficiency & Growth data was discussed.

2. Enrollment & Attendance data was discussed.

b. Board Fund Report

The Board Fund balance was reviewed by the Trustees. 

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS

a. 2016 National Charter Schools Conference – Board members noted the annual conference
in June and deliberated about participation and the professional development opportunities
it would enable.

b. Personal Profile Update Forms were completed by the attending Trustees.

c. The proposed 2016-2017 Board Meetings Calendar was reviewed and suggestions made
for revision prior to adoption at a subsequent meeting.

d. Form 990 was presented with further review and approval to be undertaken.
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Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Page 3 of 5 

7. ACTION ITEMS

a. Approval of the Annual Board Development and Evaluation

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to conduct evaluations of the 
Management company and the Board at the February meeting and henceforth at each 
January meeting moving forward. The motion was approved unanimously. 

b. Reappointment of Deborah King

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to Reappoint Deborah King to 
Serve an Additional Three-year Term on the Riverton Street Charter School Board of 
Trustees to Expire in June of 2019. The motion was approved unanimously.  

c. Reappointment of Angela Kiffin

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to Reappoint Angela Kiffin to 
Serve an Additional Three-year Term on the Riverton Street Charter School Board of 
Trustees to Expire in June of 2019. The motion was approved unanimously.  

d. Reappointment of Marilyn Towns-Jones

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to Reappoint Marilyn Towns-
Jones to Serve an Additional Three-year Term on the Riverton Street Charter School 
Board of Trustees to Expire in June of 2019. The motion was approved unanimously. 

e. Reappointment of Rochelle Noel

A motion was made by Linda Green and duly seconded to Reappoint Rochelle Noel to 
Serve an Additional Three-year Term on the Riverton Street Charter School Board of 
Trustees to Expire in June of 2019. The motion was approved unanimously.  

f. Appointment of the 2015-2016 Audit Firm

A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to appoint Plante Moran 
as the 2015-2016 Audit Firm. The motion was approved unanimously.  

g. Approval of the Personnel Hires

Tabled. 

h. Approval of the Curriculum Mapping Support Initiative

A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to approve the 
expenditure of Board Funds not to exceed the amount of $2,500.00 for the cost of the 
Curriculum Mapping Support Initiative as submitted. The motion was approved 
unanimously.  
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Riverton Street Charter School
Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Page 4 of 5 

8. NEW BUSINESS

 The Board noted the graduation date of the 8th grade as June 17, 2016.
 Rochelle Noel formally welcomed newly appointed Emma Dawson to the Board and

thanked her for her willingness to serve.
 Jim McCarthy noted that the construction phase of the expansion of the facilities is

complete and that the opening is now contingent upon the issuance of the Temporary
Certificate of Occupancy.

9. PUBLIC COMMENT

 Parent:
o There needs to be extra activities at the school
o The staff turnover is a concern
o Communication needs to be improved
o A threat of violent behavior was made towards my child

 Parent:
o I hope the Board can affect positive change at the school
o Why is Riverton Street unable to complete with the salaries of DOE?
o Resources available from CSE #29 should be explored
o My son’s IEP services are sometimes limited

 Parent:
o The threat of violent behavior was also made against my child
o NHA should offer creative incentives for teachers
o The school should focus on children as scholars not as statistics
o Concern about teacher turnover was expressed

 Parent:
o Members of the staff don’t give full attention to parent complaints

 Parent:
o The fine arts should be part of the curriculum
o Efforts should be made to raise auxiliary funding

 Parent:
o Curriculum development should involve the Board and parents

 Parent:
o It is a struggle to obtain my child’s homework assignments
o The administration should be in better communication with one another

8 



Riverton Street Charter School
Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 at 7 p.m.

Page 5 of 5 

 Teacher:
o In the middle school level, the school culture is markedly better comparatively

even while improvements are needed

10. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: 

Monday, February 8, 2016 at 7 p.m. 

OFFICER OF THE BOARD 

SIGNATURE 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. DRAFT 

AT RIVERTON STREET CHARTER SCHOOL 
11834 RIVERTON STREET, ST. ALBANS, NY 11412 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 

PRESENT NOT PRESENT TERM EXPIRATION 

Keisha Phillips-Kong | President X June 30, 2018 

Linda Green | Vice President X June 30, 2017 

Marilyn Towns-Jones | Treasurer X June 30, 2019 

Angela Kiffin | Secretary X June 30, 2019 

Deborah King | Trustee X June 30, 2019 

Emma Dawson | Trustee X June 30, 2017 

Rochelle Noel | Trustee X June 30, 2019 

NON-BOARD MEMBERS ATTENDING: 

1. Andrea Whitehurst – Principal 

2. Jim McCarthy – NHA 

3. Michelle Hasey – Parent 

4. Shaun Chatman – Parent 

5. Adriane Johnson – Parent 

6. Yu Kai Cheung – Staff 

7. Trina Mitchell – Parent 

8. Yvette Wilds – Staff 

9. Frances Visioso – Staff 

10. Vickye Anderson – Parent 

11. Adrian Moore – Parent 

12. Kate Ofikuru – Staff 

13. Richardine Louise – Parent 

14. Karema Ward – Parent 

1.	 CALL TO ORDER 

Keisha Phillips-Kong called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. DRAFT 

2.	 ROLL CALL 

Roll call was held. 

3.	 APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

A motion was made by Rochelle Noel and duly seconded to approve the agenda as revised 
changing the following: 

 Move Public Comment to immediately after Management Reports
 
 Table consideration of the Services and Lease Agreements
 
 Consider revising enrollment preferences for the school lottery
 

The motion was approved unanimously. 

4.	 APPROVAL OF THE MAY 16, 2016 BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to approve the May 16, 2016 
Board Meeting Minutes as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 

5.	 APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 8, 2016 BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

A motion was made by Deborah King and duly seconded to approve the June 8, 2016 Board 
Meeting Minutes as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 

6.	 MANAGEMENT REPORTS 

a.	 Principal Report 
Angela Whitehurst presented the Principal Report. Special note was made of the first place 
honor given to a Riverton Street Charter School student during the CSD #29 science fair. 

i.	 Whistleblower Report 
Andrea Whitehurst presented the Whistleblower Report indicating there were no 
incidents that violated the approved Whistleblower Policy at the school. 

b.	 Special Education Update
 
The Special Education Update was given.
 

c.	 Board Fund Report
 
The Board Fund balance of $31,142.10 was reported.
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. DRAFT 

7.	 PUBLIC COMMENT 

	 A parent noted that students with IEPs often miss regular work when pulled out of their 
classrooms. Also, it was asked that attention to the breakfast food provided be given as 
well as security concerns at the school. 

 A parent asked that the structures for parent participation in school fundraising be 
examined. 

 A parent asked for an Advanced Placement class be initiated; that parent participated in 
the school’s life be facilitated and that the food choices be reviewed. 

 A parent stated that parents need to be more interactive in school life. 
 A parent stated that she was unaware of the schedule of Board meetings, that attention to 

the condition of the outside playing field be attended to; that extra-curricular activities be 
made possible; and that the food program be assessed. 

8.	 DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a.	 The Proposed 2016-2017 Board Funds Budget was presented to the Board and reviewed 
for further action/approval at a subsequent meeting. 

9.	 ACTION ITEMS 

a.	 Approval of the Lease Agreement
 
Tabled.
 

b.	 Approval of the Services Agreement
 
Tabled.
 

c.	 Approval of the 2016-2017 Initial Budget Proposal 
A motion was made by Rochelle Noel and duly seconded to approve the 2016-2017 Initial 
Budget Proposal as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 

d.	 Approval of the 2016 Compliance with Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) Form 
A motion was made by Deborah King and duly seconded to approve the 2016 Compliance 
with Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) Form as submitted. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 

e.	 Approval of the 2017 Letter of Agency for E-rate Funding 
A motion was made by Marilyn Towns-Jones and duly seconded to approve the 2017 Letter 
of Agency for E-rate Funding as submitted. The motion was approved unanimously. 
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Riverton Street Charter School 
Board Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. DRAFT 

f.	 Approval of the Personnel Hires 
A motion was made by Rochelle Noel and duly seconded to approve the Personnel Hires of: 

• Alicia Armstrong-Hall as an Art Teacher 
• Amber Mendis-Wilson as a Transitional Teacher 
• Maisha Tippins as a Transitional Teacher 
• Melissa Levinson as a Fourth Grade Teacher 

The motion was approved unanimously. 

g.	 Approval of the Revision to Enrollment Preferences 
A motion was made by Rochelle Noel and duly seconded to revise the school’s policy for 
enrollment preferences to include the children of teachers at Riverton Street Charter School 
as per the submitted policy and to seek affirmation by the OSDCP. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

10.	 NEW BUSINESS 

Jim McCarthy noted that the appointment of a hearing officer for disciplinary hearings needs to be 
reviewed. 

11.	 ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: 

Monday, August 29, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

OFFICER OF THE BOARD 

SIGNATURE ________________________________________ 

Page 4 of 4 



   
 

 
        
            

         
          

 
   

         
        

       
       

       
   

      
         

          
   

           
       

          
           

       
    

 
          

          
        

         
         

   
         

           
   

 
    
          

         
        

     
          

         
            

              
     

        
           

 

Riverton Street Charter School
 
Enrollment and Retention Efforts
 

Riverton Street understands the need to enroll and retain specific student populations in 
numbers comparable to the District 29. With full enrollment and a waiting list, meeting the 
targets for students with disabilities (SWD), English language learners (ELL) and students who 
qualify for free and reduced price lunch (FRL) is a challenge. 

ELL Recruitment Efforts 
In order to make progress toward our ELL enrollment targets, we have implemented the 
following strategies, which will continue in the coming school year: 
 Advertisements and notifications have been placed in the following publications: Haiti 

Observateur, El Correo de Queens, The Weekly Bangladesh. In these publications we 
specifically mentioned that the school provides services to students for whom English is their 
second language. 

	 Fliers were distributed in Bengali, Creole, Urdu, Spanish, and English to families throughout 
the community. Distribution sites included daycare centers, grocery stores, community 
centers, and churches. These fliers invited families to attend the Enrollment Information 
Meeting. 

	 An Enrollment Information Meeting was hosted for all parents interested in the school and 
we provided student applications in a number of languages: Arabic, Bengali, Chinese, 
English, Haitian Creole, Italian, Korean, Polish, Russian, Spanish, and Urdu. At the 
enrollment meetings, information regarding the ELL Program and its ability to meet the 
needs of ELL students was provided. We provided ELL families with strategies to help their 
children in school, specific English Language Development (ELD) strategies for such 
parents. 

	 To ensure the retention of accepted students, and in compliance with federal requirements 
to identify potential ELL students, the school asked these families to complete a “Home 
Language Questionnaire.” Information from this survey ensures that each child for whom 
English is a second language is provided the services he/she needed to succeed in school. 

	 Marketing materials that describe general school information and ELL and Special 
Education programs available in English and Spanish, and other languages as requested. 

	 Riverton Street’s staff have participated in professional development to provide staff 
members with tools that they can implement in the classroom to better meet the needs of 
their English Language Learners. 

FRL and SWD Recruitment Efforts 
Brochures that describe our special education programming have been distributed throughout 
the community. In order to reach the families of special needs students, we utilize many 
networks that already exist in the community. Riverton Street’s Strategic Marketing Coordinator 
will continue to build relationships with support organizations to gain familiarity with the services 
they provide. We do this both so we can recommend their support services to the families of 
accepted or interested students and so these organizations know about our school and its 
special education program – so that they may recommend our school to the families they serve. 
We know that most families hear about our school by word of mouth, and we believe that a 
relationship with these organizations lays the groundwork for informal communications and 
referrals. In addition, we will continue to work with these organizations to distribute information 
about our school, our special education program, and our enrollment procedures. 



         
        

          
       

      
         

          
             

 
 
           

       
        

          
      

 
       

          
         

         
   

             
         

           
        
        

      
           

      
         

    
    

        
            
        

        
        

      
          

      
       

     
 

    
         

          
            

           
       

    

All special needs students (FRL, ELL, and SWD) are made aware of our school’s programs 
through open meetings during the year. The school’s parent meetings clearly indicate that we 
offer a free and appropriate education (FAPE) to all our students in the Least Restrictive 
Environment. Furthermore, the school has an established relationship with the Committee for 
Special Education (CSE) for children under its guise and has made materials and applications 
to Riverton Street available for distribution to interested parents. We invite parents to meet with 
the school’s Special Education Team and the CSE to develop an Individual Education Plan 
(IEP) for the child or to work within the parameters of the plan already in place from the child’s 
previous school. 

We will continue to monitor the efficacy of our recruitment and enrollment efforts by carefully 
tracking student enrollment numbers. Through our robust data warehouse, we collect detailed 
information on trends in at-risk student populations, report to the Board on enrollment trends, 
and adjust the marketing strategy, as needed, to ensure that parents of these children know that 
Riverton Street is dedicated to serving their children’s needs. 

Retention Efforts – All Special Student Populations 
We believe several core elements of our school culture function as linchpins of our recruitment 
and retention strategy for our special needs students. These elements include the high-quality 
educational program that we provide, the caring culture that we have established, and our many 
parent involvement initiatives. 
 Culture and Climate: We have a school climate and culture that focus purposefully on caring 

for each student as a family cares for its children. We believe our school-wide behavior and 
classroom management practices –which we refer to as Behave with Care – help attract and 
retain special needs students. Our Behave with Care program is built on research-based 
programs for reinforcing positive behaviors, setting clear expectations, and building teacher-
student relationships and peer relationships. 

	 Parent Involvement: To ensure that our families feel connected to the school, we have 
implemented several parent involvement strategies, including 
o	 Newsletters: Regular newsletters from the principal and teachers are distributed to 

parents. Important information regarding school-wide performance, initiatives, and 
programs is included in the newsletter. 

o	 Social media: We have an excellent website, which gives parents quick and easy access 
to general information on the school as well as specific information about their children. 
In addition, we make cautious, appropriate use of Facebook and other social media sites 
to form connections between school leaders and parents. Parents without access to the 
internet can use the computer and internet available at the school. 

o	 Classroom Communication: Teachers frequently send home communications for parents 
so that they know about everything from weekly schedules to educational goals for 
students. Teachers also share regular progress reports – via letter, online 
communication via the school’s AtSchool gradebook system, phone calls, and/or in-
person meetings. These communications focus on each student's academic progress 
and performance. 

o	 Conferences: Parent-teacher conferences are conducted twice each year. These 
conferences ensure that dedicated time is set aside for each parent to engage and 
interact with classroom teachers and discuss the progress of his or her child. As needed, 
staff may also conduct home visits. Each year, we conduct a family orientation at the 
end of the summer so new and enrolled families can meet the principal, their child's 
teacher and classmates, and other school staff. We believe these early contacts help 
establish and sustain a healthy rapport with parents. 



              
        

       
         

    
 

 
 

 

o	 Parent Room: In order to help parents feel at home in the school and to encourage their 
presence in their child's education, the school building provides a dedicated parent 
room. This room gives parents a place to gather and build relationships with one 
another, discuss matters of mutual interest, grow more comfortable with the school, and 
take some ownership of the school. 
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Riverton Street Charter School
 
Organizational Chart
 

2015-16
 

*Employees are 
jointly employed 
by the school 
Board and NHA. 

Student Family 
Liaison

Principal
 

Lower Elementary 
Dean

 

Upper Elementary 
Dean

 

Kindergarten 
Teachers 

 

First Grade 
Teachers 

Second Grade
Teachers 

 

Third Grade 
Teachers 

Fourth Grade 
Teachers

 

Fifth Grade 
Teachers

K-8 Art 
Teacher

Middle School 
Dean

 

Registrar
 

Substitute 
Teachers

Special Education 
Teachers

 

Paraprofessional
(Based on Student Need & 
Available Grant Funding)

Social Worker 
 (Based on Student Need & 

Available Grant Funding)

Special Education 
Paraprofessional

Based on Student Need & 
Available Grant Funding)

K-5 Music 
Teacher

K-6 History 
Teacher

Office 
Administrator

Board of 
Trustees*

 

NHA*
 

Recess Aide
 

6/7 Grade 
Language Arts Teacher 

 

6/8 Grade 
Social Studies Teacher 

 

Sixth Grade Math 
Teacher

 

Sixth Grade Science 
Teacher

 

7/8 Grade 
Math Teacher

 

K-8 Spanish 
Teacher

K-8 PE 
Teachers

Special Education 
Teachers

 

Recess Aides
 

Special Education 
Teachers

 

Academic 
Specialist

Paraprofessionals
(Based on Student Need & 
Available Grant Funding)

Tutor
(Based on Student Need & 
Available Grant Funding)

Counselor
(Based on Student Need & 
Available Grant Funding)

7/8 Grade Science 
Teacher

 

Eighth Grade Language 
Arts Teacher 
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Riverton Street Charter School
 
2016-17 School Year
 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31 

June 20-24 Content Leader Training Option 1 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 

July 11-15 Content Leader Training Option 2 August 
July 25-28 NHA Leadership Summit Su M T W Th F Sa 

23rd-26th NTO 

30th Regional PD; 31st Staff PD 

September 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

1st Staff PD 

5th Labor Day; 6th-7th Staff PD; 8th First Day of School 

October 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

3rd-4th Rosh Hashanah; 5th School Resumes 

10th Columbus Day; 12th Yom Kippur 

November 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

8th Regional PD; 10th End of 1st Qtr; 11th Veterans Day 

17th PT Conferences 

24th-25th Thanksgiving Recess 

28th School Resumes 

December 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

26th-Jan 2nd Winter Recess 

January 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

3rd School Resumes; 6th End of 2nd Quarter 

16th Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

February 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

2nd PT Conferences 

17th Regional PD
 
20th-24th Mid-Winter Recess
 

27th School Resumes
 

March 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

14th-15th Principals Mtg 

April 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

10th-18th Spring Recess 

19th School Resumes; 21st End of 3rd Quarter 

May 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

29th Memorial Day 

June 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

8th Anniversary Day/Staff PD 

23rd End of 4th Quarter 

28th Last Day of School 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 

July 
Su M T W Th F Sa 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31 

Students Do Not Report/ Staff Report All Day Last Update: 4/25/2016 
Students Report Half Day/ Staff Report All Day 180 School Days 
Students/ Staff Do Not Report 7:30am-3:00pm School Hours

Board Approved: 5/16/16 7:30am-11:30am  (half) 

1207 Instructional Hours 
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